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Report of the Board of Directors

Dear Shareholders,

We have the pleasure in presenting you the 41* Annual Report of Oman Insurance Company for the year-
ended 31 December 2017.

In brief, the gross written premium increased by 4.58% reaching AED 3.72 billion against AED 3.56
billion in 2016.

The 2017 technical profits were AED 116.9 million against AED 105.9 million in 2016.
Net incurred claims increased to AED 1,035 million against AED 949 million in 2016.
Net technical reserves reached AED 1,63 billion compared to AED 1.55 billion in 2016.

Net profit attributable to the owners of the company increased to AED 106.32 million in 2017 as against
AED 80.82 million in 2016.

The segment analysis of the results are detailed as follows.

1) General Insurance:

Total premiums written in this division amounted to AED 1,958,010 thousand against AED 1,766,078
thousand in 2016, an increase of 10.87%. The net incurred claims amounted to AED 502,169 thousand
against AED 418,047 thousand in 2016.

The division’s share in the General and Administration expenses amounted AED 188,940 thousand
against AED 169,043 thousand in 2016.

The division realized a net underwriting profit of AED 36,965 thousand against AED 75,706 thousand in
2016.

2) Life Assurance:

Premiums written in the Life and Medical Insurance division amounted to AED 1,760,231 thousand
against AED 1,789,204 thousand in 2016, a decrease of 1.62%. The net incurred claims amounted to
AED 532,502 thousand against AED 531,114 thousand in 2016.

The division’s share of General and Administration expenses amounted to AED 102,922 thousand
against AED 120,986 thousand in 2016.

The division realized a net underwriting profit of AED 79,925 thousand against profit of AED 30,176
thousand in 2016.

3) Cash and Investments:

The Company’s cash and investments for this year stood at AED 3,004,462 thousand against AED
2,946,403 thousand in 2016 and the investment income was AED 76,377 thousand against AED 73,290
thousand in 2016.



Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

4) Assets and shareholders equity:
Shareholders equity reached AED 2,060,827 thousand against AED 1,957,093 thousand in 2016.

The total assets of the Company at the end of year 2017 stood at AED 7,404,690 thousand as against
AED 7,255,936 thousand at the end of year 2016.

Profit and Loss and Appropriation Account:

The net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year 2017 is AED 106,321 thousand against
AED 80,822 thousand in 2016 and further detailed below:

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Profits brought forward 352,729 376,362
Net profit for the year attributable to
owners of the company 106,321 80,822
459,050 457,184
Other comprehensive loss (50,267) (37,887)
Transfer to general reserve - (19,724)
Cash dividends paid (46,187) (46,187)
Transfer to contingency reserve (1,957) (637)
Retained earnings 360,639 352,729

Board of Directors Recommendations:

The Board of Directors recommends shareholders do the following:
1. Approve the Board of Directors’ Report.

2. Approve the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
approve the auditors' report thereon for the mentioned period.

3. Discharge the Auditors from their liabilities arising out of audit work and re-appoint M/s Deloitte and
Touche (M.E) as auditors for financial year 2018 and approve their remuneration.

4. Discharge the Board of Directors from their liabilities for their management of the Company during
2017.

5. Approve the Board®s recommendation regarding the remuneration of the Board members.

6. Approve the Board’s recommendation to distribute dividends for the financial year 2017.



Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Standard & Poor's (S&P) Ratings Services continues to retain its A- stable outlook rating on Oman
Insurance Company (P.S.C.). According to S&P’s report dated 18 August 2017, the “stable outlook
reflects the view that OIC’s capital adequacy will remain at the ‘AAA’ level and support its growth and
diversification plans over the next two years”.

In conclusion, the members of the Board of Directors are happy with the performance of the Company
during 2017 considering the challenging year for both the global economy and local insurance industry.
We would like to put on record our sincere appreciation and gratitude towards all stakeholders of OIC.
We continue to draw inspiration and guidance from our valued customers and business partners whose
trust and confidence helps us to continue the journey untiringly.

We express our special thanks to the management and staff of the Company for their sincere and
dedicated contribution to the successful growth of the Company and wish them all the best for continued
success,

May God; the Almighty; guide our steps.

On behalf of the Board,

e,

Abdul Aziz Abdulla Al Ghurair
Chairman

12 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Shareholders

Oman Insurance Company P.S.C.
Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oman Insurance Company P.S.C. (the
“Company”) and its Subsidiaries (together the “Group”), Dubai, United Arab Emirates which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Oman Insurance Company P.S.C. and its
Subsidiaries, Dubai, United Arab Emirates as at 31 December 2017, and their consolidated
financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in United Arab Emirates, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Anis Sadek (521), Cynthia Corby (995), Georges Najem (809), Mchammad Khamees Al Tah (717), Musa Ramahi (872), Mutasem
Dajani (726), Rama Padmanabha Acharya (701) and Samir Madbak (3B6) are registered practising auditors with the UAE Ministry of
Ecanamy.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Valuation of Investment properties

Under fair value model, investment properties is
remeasured at fair value, which is the amount
for which the properties could be exchanged
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm's length transaction. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in net profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

The valuation of investment properties, as
detailed in note 7, requires significant
judgement and estimates by management and
the independent external valuers. The existence
of significant estimation and judgement,
coupled with change in valuation assumption
used could result in material misstatement.

We consider the valuation of investment
properties a key audit matter, given the
significant  assumptions and  judgements
involved.

Valuation of Unquoted investments

As disclosed in note 9, financial investments
include unquoted equity investments, the
carrying value of which incorporates certain
assumptions and judgements, the valuation of
these investments were carried out by
independent external valuer.

We consider the valuation of these unquoted
investments a key audit matter, given the
significant  measurement  uncertainty and
judgements involved.

The Group has involved independent external valuer
in order to value the investment properties for the
purpose of determining the fair value for inclusion in
the consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit procedures, we assessed the
competence, capabilities, objectivity and verified the
qualifications of the independent external valuer.

In addition to above, we made use of our internal
experts to review the reasonableness of the valuation.

* Methodologies used and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions, and

* Accuracy and relevance of the input data used for
deriving fair values.

Management has involved independent external valuer
to perform valuation of these unquoted investments,
we assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuer, and
verified the qualifications of the valuer. In addition,
we discussed the scope of his work with management
and reviewed the terms of engagement to determine
that there were no matters that affected objectivity or
imposed scope limitations.

We made use of our internal experts to evaluate on a
sample basis the independent external valuer's
judgments, in particular:

= The models used for valuation; and

* Ensured that the valuation was done in accordance
with the applicable standards and suitable for use in
determining the carrying value for the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Valuation of Insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assers

As at 31 December 2017, insurance contract
liabilities and reinsurance contract assets
amounted to AED 4.15 billion and AED 2.52
billion respectively, as detailed in note 11 to
these consolidated financial statements.

As set out in note 3.6 and note 4.2, valuation of
these liabilities requires professional judgment
and also involve number of assumptions made by
management.  Reinsurance contract assets
includes amounts that the Group is entitled to
receive under the reinsurance contracts and, more
specifically, the share of the reinsurer in the
insurance contract liabilities recorded by the
Group.

This is particularly the case for those liabilities
that are based on the best-estimate of technical
reserves that includes ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at a given date, whether
reported or not, together with the related claims
handling costs and related technical reserves
along with their reinsurance recoveries. A range
of methods are used by management and the
internal actuary/independent external actuary to
determine these provisions. Underlying these
methods are a number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating to the expected settlement
amount and settlement patterns of claims.

Furthermore, valuation of life insurance contract
liabilities involves complex and subjective
judgement made by management and the internal
actuary/independent external actuary about
variety of uncertain future outcomes, including
the estimation of economic assumptions, such as
investment return, discount rates, and operating
assumptions, such as expense, mortality and
persistency. Changes in these assumptions can
result in material impacts to the valuation of
these liabilities.

As a result of all the above factors, we consider
the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets as key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included:

*Testing the underlying Group data to source
documentation.

*Evaluating and testing of key controls around the
claims handling and case reserve setting processes of
the Group including allocation of reinsurance portion
of the claims.

*Evaluating and testing of key controls designed to
ensure the integrity of the data used in the actuarial
reserving process.

*Checking samples of claims case reserves through
comparing the estimated amount of the case reserve to
appropriate documentation, such as reports from loss
adjuster and reinsurance contracts.

*Re-performing reconciliations between the claims
data recorded in the Group’s systems and the data
used in the actuarial reserving calculations.
*Recalculating the unearned premium reserve based
on the earning period on insurance contracts existing
as of 31 December 2017.

=Obtaining the reinsurance treaty summary for the
year and verifying the details in the summary to the
respective agreements on samples basis.

In addition, with the assistance of our actuarial
specialists, we:

=performed necessary reviews to ascertain whether the
results are appropriate for financial disclosure.
sreviewed the actuarial report compiled by the
independent external actuaries of the Group and
calculations underlying these provisions, particularly
the following areas;

e Appropriateness of the calculation methods
and approach (actuarial best practice)
Review of assumptions
Sensitivities to key assumptions
Risk profiles
Consistency between valuation periods
General  application of  financial
mathematical rules

and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report
of the Group. We obtained the Directors’ report, prior to the date of this auditors’ report and the
remaining information of the annual report expected to be made available to us after that date. The other
information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining information of the annual report of the Group, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with [FRS, and their preparation in compliance with applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No (2) of 2015 and UAE Federal law No. 6 of 2007, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Deloitte '
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

vi)

vii)

we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with
the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;

the Group has maintained proper books of account;

the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of
the Group;

as disclosed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has purchased and
invested in sharss during the financial year ended 31 December 2017;

Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party transactions and
balances, and the terms under which they were conducted; and

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Group has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
contravened any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or in respect
of the Company, its Articles of Association, which would materially affsct its activities or its
financial position as at 31 December 2017,

Further, as required by the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 and the related Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanations we

considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Deloitte & Touche (MLE.)

Signed by:

Musa Ramahi

Registration Number §72

12 February 2018

Sharjah, United Arab Emirates



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 December 2017

ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Financial investments

Statutory deposits

Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance receivables

Deferred acquisition costs

Prepayments and other receivables

Deposits with banks with maturity over
three months

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Cumulative changes in fair value of securities
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to the Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities

End of service benefits
Insurance contract liabilities
Bank borrowings

Insurance payables

Other payables

Deferred commission income
Re-insurance deposits retained

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

----------------------------------------------------

Abdul Aziz Abdulla Al Ghurair
Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

()

8.2

10
11
12

13

14
14

15
16

17

11

18
19.1
19.2

2017
AED’000

15,133
84,675
510,791
14,414
1,820
1,959,572
157,486
2,518,249
1,462,250
148,180
155,507

138,487
238,126

7,404,690

461,872

1,479,294
(233,219)
(29,378)

360,639

2,039,208
21,619

2,060,827

36,805
4,153,247
240,927
651,630
82,758
108,216
70,280

5,343,863

7,404,690

10

2016
AED000

21,255
78,197
511,364
15,365
9,126
1,847,946
121,715
2,407,487
1,531,259
128,630
118,214

169,988
295,390

7,255,936

461,872
1,477,337

(332,402)

(27,100)
352,729

1,932,436
24,657

1,957,093

32,769
3,956,799
367,732
680,223
98,365
95,633
67,322

5,298,843

7,255,936

Christos Adamantiadis
Chief Executive Officer



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Gross insurance premium
Less: Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers

Net retained premium
Net change in unearned premium

Net earned insurance premium

Gross claims settled

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers
Net claims settled

Net change in outstanding claims and

additional reserve

Net claims incurred

Reinsurance commission income
Commission expenses
Other income relating

to underwriting activities

Net commission and other income
General and administrative expenses relating
to underwriting activities

Net underwriting profit

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

25.1
25.1

251

25.2
25.2

2017
AED’000

3,718,241

(2,213,250)

1,504,991
(51,092)

1,453,899

(2,508,918)
1,478,686

(1,030,232)

(4,439)

(1,034,671)

327,951
(381,950)

43,523

(10,476)

(291,862)

116,890

11

2016
AED’000

3,555,282

(2,184,325)

1,370,957
(41,389)

1,329,568

(2,287,096)
1,287,320

(999,776)
50,615

(949,161)

320,466
(348,826)

43,864

15,504

(290,029)

105,882



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Net underwriting profit
Net investment income
Finance costs

Allowance for doubtful debts
Other expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expenses

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (AED)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

20

12.3

21

8.1

22

23

2017
AED'000

116,890
76,377
(2,481)

(36,126)

(42,862)

111,798

(7,313)

104,485

———

106,321
(1,836)

104,485

0.23

12

2016
AED’000

105,882
73,290
(2,961)

(37,282)

(53,573)
85,356

(6,461)

78,895

80,822
(1,927)

78,895

0.17



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Net fair value gains on revaluation of
investments designated at FVTOCI

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Exchange loss on translation of
foreign operations

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

13
2017 2016
AED *000 AED ’000
104,485 78,895
48,916 17,652
(3,480) (8,135)
45,436 9,517
149,921 88,412
152,959 95,532
(3,038) (7,120)
149,921 88,412
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OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.5.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
AED’000
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit for the year before tax 111,798
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 19,029
Fair value adjustments on investment properties 573
Unrealised gains on financial investments at FVTPL (48,825)
Loss on sale/write off of fixed assets 222
Provision for end of service benefits 9,338
Allowance for doubtful receivables 36,126
Dividends income from financial investments at FVTPL
and FVTOCI (20,090)
Interest income from financial assets (57,555)
Amortization of financial assets 3,946
Realised losses on sale of financial investments at FVTPL 271
Realised (gains)/losses on sale of financial investments at
amortised cost (9,072)
Finance costs 2,481
Other investment expenses 23,745
Rental income from investment properties (10,689)
Unrealised gains on fair valuation of derivatives -
Operating cash flows before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 61,298
Increase in reinsurance contract assets (110,762)
Increase in insurance and other receivables (8,759)
Increase in deferred acquisition costs (19,550)
Increase in insurance contract liabilities 155,706
(Decrease)/increase in insurance and other payables (44,530)
Increase/(decrease) in reinsurance deposits retained 2,958
Increase in deferred commission income 12,583
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations 48,944
End of service benefits paid (5,302)
Finance costs paid (2,481)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 41,161

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2016
AED’000

85,356

18,931
2,361
(9,884)
2,851
7,753
37,282

(24,086)

(68,844)
2,230
2,369

7,465
2,961
19,044

(8,821)

(480)

76,488

(615,788)
(243,389)
(10,743)
606,562
148,862
(7,563)
2,101

(43,470)
(5,176)
(2,961)

(51,607)



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of financial investments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from sale of financial investments at FVTOCI

Purchases of financial investments at FVTPL

Proceeds from sale of financial investments at FVTPL

Increase/(decrease) in unit linked liabilities

Proceeds from sale of financial investments at amortised cost

Purchases of financial investments at amortised cost

Dividends received from financial investments at FVTPL
and FYTOCI

Interest received from financial assets

Rental income from investment properties

Other investment expenses

Purchase of propeity and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Decrease/(increase) in term deposits maturing after 3 months

Increase in statutory deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
(Decrease)/increase in bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balances of cash
held in foreign currency

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 14)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2017
AED’000

(126,270)
297,658
(129,618)
150,583
40,742
654,585
(855,968)

22,506
59,325
10,852

(23,415)
(3,333)

(16,127)
31,501

(35,771)

77,250

(46,187)
(126,805)

(172,992)

(54,581)
295,390

(2,683)

238,126

17

2016
AED’000

(217,288)
121,378

(135,638)
157,200
(35,516)
141,102

(161,040)

22,041
73,081
8,840
(19,433)
(2,545)
(13,397)
(40,890)
(14,672)

(116,777)

(46,187)
334,243

288,056

119,672
179,435

(3,717)

295,390
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

1. General information

Oman Insurance Company P.S.C., (the “Company”) which was established by an Amiri Decree issued by
His Highness, The Ruler of Dubai, is a public sharcholding company. The Company is subject to the
regulations of U.AE. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance Authority and
Organization of its Operations and is registered in the Insurance Companies Register of Insurance
Authority of the U.A.E. under registration number 9. The Company is a subsidiary of Mashreq Bank
(PSC) incorporated in the Emirate of Dubai. The Company’s registered head office is at P.O. Box 5209,
Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The Group comprises Oman Insurance Company P.S.C and its subsidiaries

(see note 31). The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Dubai Financial Market, United Arab
Emirates.

The licensed activities of the Company are issuing short term and long term insurance contracts and
trading in securities. The insurance contracts are issued in connection with property, motor, aviation and
marine risks (collectively known as general insurance) and individual life (participating and non-
participating), group life, personal accident, medical and investment linked products.

The Company also operates in Sultanate of Oman, State of Qatar, and Republic of Turkey.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

2.1 New and revised IFRS applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements

The following new and revised IFRS, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2017, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these
revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but
may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

+  Amendments to IAS 12 lncome Taxes relating to the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses,

»  Amendments to [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

«  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities.
22 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle amending I January 2018
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

(2011).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency;

e the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income
liability in respect of that consideration, in advance of the
recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

e the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-
monetary.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment regarding classification 1 January 2018
and measurement of share based payment transactions.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different | January 2018
effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the forthcoming
new insurance contracts standard,

Amendments to [AS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to 1 January 2018
state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment

property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A

change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the

definition of investment property. A change in management’s

intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constitute

evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been amended to state

that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive,

Finalised version of IFRS 9 [IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)] was 1 January 2018
issued in July 2014 incorporating requirements for classification and

measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and

derecognition. This amends classification and measurement

requirement of financial assets and introduces new expected loss

impairment model.

» Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected
credit loss' model for the measurement of the impairment of
financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before a credit loss is recognized.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

22 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)
Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Finalised version of IFRS 9 [IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)]
(continued)

» Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model
that is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities
undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

¥ Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39,

A new measurement category of fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) will apply for debt instruments held
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

A new impairment model based on expected credit losses will apply to
debt instruments measured at amortised costs or FVTOCI, lease
receivables, contract assets and certain written loan commitments and
financial guarantee contract.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional When IFRS 9 is first applied
hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)

resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in

IFRS 9,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers | January 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including 1AS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

« Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

+  Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

« Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

= Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation,

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer, Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15,

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to 1 January 2018
clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance

obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to

provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed

contracts.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle amending 1 January 2019
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, 1AS 12
Income Taxes and 1AS 23 Borrowing Caosts.

[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12, It
specifically considers:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Incame Tax Treatments (continued) 1 January 2019

s Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
e Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations,

= The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

» The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an [FRS reporter will recognise, measure, present
and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a
low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance,
with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged
from its predecessor, 1AS 17.

Amendments to [FRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment 1 January 2019
features with negative compensation. This amends the existing

requirements in [FRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to allow

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model,

at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of

negative compensation payments.

Amendments to 1AS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: I January 2019
Relating to long-term interests in associates and joint ventures. These

amendments clarify that an entity applies 1FRS 9 Financial

Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that

form part of the net investment in the associale or joint venture but to

which the equity method is not applied.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current
fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts, These requirements are
designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting
for insurance contracts. [FRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
as of 1 January 2021,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)
22 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)
Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendments to [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and [AS Effective date deferred

28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the indefinitely. Adoption is still
treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its permitted.

associate or joint venture.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the period of initial application and adoption of these
new standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 17, may have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that [FRS 17 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2021. The application of IFRS 17 may have significant
impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
respect of its insurance contracts. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effects of the application of this standard until the Group performs a detailed review.

The IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in July 2014, which replaces [AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9
brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective
application is required but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting,
the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The Group has in previous years adopted the first phase of the IFRS 9 with regards to classification and
measurement of financial instruments and plans to adopt the final phase of IFRS 9 (impairment and
hedge accounting) on the required effective date from 1 January 2018.

Based on an analysis of the Group financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that date, Directors of the Group have assessed the
impact of IFRS 9 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Based on 31 December 2017 data, the Group has performed a preliminary assessment of potential
impact of adopting IFRS 9 based on the financial instruments as at the date of initial application of
IFRS 9 (1 January 2018). The Group estimates the adoption of IFRS 9 to lead to an overall reduction in
the Group total shareholders’ equity of approximately AED 222 million. This reduction is
predominately driven by the impairment requirements of [FRS 9.

This assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from
further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group until the Group
presents its first consolidated financial statements that include the date of initial application.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

22 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)
Disclosure

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard. The Group’s assessment included an
analysis to identify data gaps against current process and the Group has implemented the system and
controls changes that it believes will be necessary to capture the required data.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and applicable requirements of United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal
Law No. (2) of 2015 and United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment
of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations,

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that have been measured at revalued amounts, amortised cost or
fair value as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of 1AS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or

3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, with a
distinction based on expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the
reporting date (current) and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented
in the notes.

The amounts in the consolidated financial statements are rounded to nearest thousand (“AED *000™)
except when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Oman Insurance P.S.C. and Subsidiaries (the “Group™)
incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the Company (its
Subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
+ rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until
the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

34 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.4 Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS,

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not measured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity, Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IFRS 9, or IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or Joss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
35 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see note 3.4 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination,

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of profit or loss on disposal.

3.6 Insurance contracts
3.6.1 Product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that the Group (the insurer) has accepted the significant insurance
risk from another party (policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Group
determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur, An insurance contract can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a
possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable provided
in case of a non-financial variable, that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
reminder of its lifetime even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire. An investment contract can however be classified as an
insurance contract after its inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Some insurance contracts and investment contracts contain discretionary participating features (DPF)
which entitle the contract holder to receive, as a supplement to the standard guaranteed benefits, additional
benefits;
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.6.1 Product classification (continued)

» that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;

= whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the insurer;

= that are contractually based on;
(i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract,
(ii) realised/unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer or,
(iii) the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues that contract.

Under IFRS 4, DPF can be either treated as an element of equity or as a liability, or can be split between the
two elements. The Group policy is to treat all DPF as a liability within insurance or investment contract
liabilities.

The policyholder bears the financial risks relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts.
Such products are usually unit-linked contracts.

3.6.2  Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts are classified into two main categories, depending on the nature of the risk, duration of
the risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed.

These contracts are general insurance contracts and life assurance contracts.
3.6.3 General insurance conlracts

Premiums are recognised as revenue (eamed premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The
portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting
period is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown in the profit and loss before
deduction of commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the profit or loss as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders.

3.6.4 Life assurance contracts

In respect of the short term life assurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionately over the period of coverage. The portion of the premium received in respect of
in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the

unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before the deduction of the commission.

In respect of long term life assurance contracts, premium are recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.

Premiums for group credit life policies are recognised when it is paid by the contract holder.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.6.4 Life assurance contracts (continued)

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in future is recorded when the premiums
are recognised. The liability is based on the assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses
and investment income that are established at the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse
deviation is included in the assumptions.

Where a life assurance contract has a single premium or limited number of premium payments due over a
significantly shorter period than the period during which the benefits are provided, the excess of the
premiums payable over the valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the
decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the contract in-force or for annuities in force, in line with the
decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to be paid.

The liabilities are recalculated at the end of each reporting period using the assumptions established at the
inception of the contract.

Claims and benefits payable to contract holders are recorded as expenses when they are incurred.
3.6.5  Reinsurance contracts

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are recognised as reinsurance contracts. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which
the contract holder is another insurer, are included in insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Group
is entitled under its reinsurance contracts are recognised as reinsurance contract assets.

The Group assesses its reinsurance contract assets for impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance contract assets are impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance contract assets to their recoverable amounts and recognises that impairment loss in the profit or
loss. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated
with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as
expenses when due.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for life insurance and general
insurance contracts where applicable. Premium and claims on assumed reinsurance contracts are
recognised as revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were
considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.
Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated
in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transferred to another party.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.6.6 Insurance contract liabilities

3.6.6.1 Unearned premium reserve

At the end of the reporting period, proportions of net retained premium of the general insurance and
medical insurance are provided to cover portions of risks which have not expired. The reserves are
calculated on time-proportion basis, with the exception of marine, where the unearned premium is
recognised as fixed proportion of the written premiums and engineering where UPR is calculated on
uniform risk basis. Unearned premium for group life and individual life classes of business is estimated
by the Group’s actuary in the calculation of the insurance contracts liabilities for life assurance business.

3.6.6.2 Additional reserve
The additional reserve comprises of the provisions made for;

s the estimated excess of potential claims over unearned premiums (premium deficiency),
» the claims incurred but not reported at the end of the reporting period (IBNR) and,
o the potential shortfall in the estimated amounts of the unpaid reported claims.

The reserve represents management’s best estimates of the potential liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. The liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of assessments for
individual cases reported to the Group, Management estimates IBNR based on past claims settlement
trends for the claims incurred but not reported using actuarial valuation method, At the end of each
reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy by the Group’s actuary and
changes are made to the provision.

3.6.6.3 Life assurance fund

The life assurance fund is determined by independent actuarial valuation of future policy benefits at the
end of each reporting period. Actuarial assumptions include a margin for adverse deviation and
generally vary by type of policy, year of issue and policy duration. Mortality and withdrawal rate
assumptions are based on experience and industry mortality tables. Adjustments to the balance of the
fund are effected by charging to profit or loss.

3.6.6.4 Unit linked liabilities

For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the policy account values. The account value is the number
of units times the bid price,

3.6.6.5 Quistanding claims

Insurance contract liabilities towards outstanding claims are recognised for all claims intimated and
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. These liabilities are known as the outstanding claims
provision, which are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the end
of the reporting period after reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can
be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of
claims cannot be known with certainty at the end of the reporting period. The liability is not discounted
for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophic reserves is recognised. The
liability is derecognised when it is expired, discharged or cancelled,
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Insurance contracts (continued)
3.6.7  Deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC)
Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as
expenses when incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised as follows:

»  Tor property, casualty and short-duration life insurance contracts, DAC is amortised over the

terms of the policies as premium is earned,
= For long-term insurance contracts, DAC is amortised in line with premium revenue using

assumptions consistent with those used in calculating future policy benefit liabilities; and
=  For long-term investment contracts, DAC is amortised over a period of four years.

3.6.8 Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Estimates of salvage and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the
measurement of the insurance liability for claims.

3.6.9 Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of
insurance contract liabilities. The Group makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such liabilities in evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately
charged to the profit or loss and provision is reserved in the additional reserve.

3.6.10 Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers, insurance contract holders and reinsurance companies.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the profit or loss.

3.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in the normal course
of business.

3.7.1  Revenue from insurance contracts

Revenue from insurance contracts is measured under revenue recognition criteria stated under insurance
contracts in these consolidated financial statements (see note 3.6).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)
3.7.2  Deferred commission income

Commission received when the reinsurance premium is ceded based on the terms and percentages
agreed with the reinsurers is recognised as deferred commission income. These commissions are
recognised as commission income using the same methodology adopted for the amortization of DAC.

3.7.3  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment has been established.

3.7.4 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.7.5  Rental income

Rental income from investment property which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.8 General and administrative expenses

Direct expenses are charged to the respective departmental revenue accounts. Indirect expenses are
allocated to departmental revenue accounts on the basis of gross written premiums of each department.
Other administration expenses are charged to profit or loss as unallocated general and administrative
EXpenses.

3.9 Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
3.9.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The tax currently payable is calculated in accordance with fiscal regulations of
Sultanate of Oman and Turkey.
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3, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.9 Income tax (continued)

3.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

The carrying of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset {o be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.9.3  Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

3.10 Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each group entity are expressed
in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (*AED"), which is the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.10  Foreign currencies (continued)
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

» exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

» exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

» exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net
investment,

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are expressed in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (“AED”), using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used, Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate),

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in the equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss, Any exchange differences that have previously been attributed to non-
controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. of associates or
jointly controlled entities not involving a change of accounting basis), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each period. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.11. Non-financial assets
3.11.1 Property and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Other property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progress, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The useful lives considered in the calculation of depreciation Furniture and equipment is 3 — 5 years and
motor vehicles is 5 years.

3.11.2 Intangible assels

Intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and identified impairment losses, if
any. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives
considered in the calculation of amortisation is 3 - 10 years.

3.12  Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
properties under construction for such purposes, Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs, Cost includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at
the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day to day
servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal, Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in
the profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.
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L E Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.12  Investment properties (continued)

Transfer is made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use evidenced by the
end of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. For a transfer from
investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up
to the date of the change in use. Fair value is determined by open market values based on valuations
performed by independent surveyors and consultants or broker’s quotes.

3.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of their tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount,
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3,14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, (where the effect of
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3,15  Employee benefits
3.15.1 Defined contribution plan

UAE national employees of the Group are members of the Government-managed retirement pension
and social security benefit scheme pursuant to U.A.E. labour law no. 7 of 1999. The Group is required
to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary™ of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the
“contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss.

3.15.2 Annual leave and leave passage

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave
passage as a result of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

3.15.3 Provision for employees' end of service benefils

Provision is made for the full amount of end of service benefit due to non-UAE national employees in
accordance with the UAE Labour Law and is based on current remuneration and their period of service
at the end of the reporting period. Provisions for employees’ end of service indemnity for the
employees working with the entities domiciled in other countries are made in accordance with local
laws and regulations applicable in these countries.

3.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
317 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Group
has no finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.18 Financial instruments
Recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
financial statements only when there is legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

3.19 Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date when the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), which are initially measured at fair value. All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value.

3.19.1 Classification of financial assets

For the purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-
derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer (under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation) except for certain non-derivative puttable instruments presented as equity by the issuer.
All other non-derivative financial assets are “debt instruments’.

3.19.2 Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.19 Financial assets (continued)
3.19.2 Financial assels at amortised cost and the effective interest method (continued)

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs (except
if they are designated as at FVTPL — see below). They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment (see 3.19.6 below), with interest income
recognised on an effective yield basis (note 3.7.4).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group is required to reclassify debt instruments from amortised
cost to FVTPL if the objective of the business model changes so that the amortised cost criteria are no
longer met.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group may irrevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the
amortised cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amortised cost.

3.19.2.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, which include cash on hand and deposits held with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, are classified as financial assets at amortised cost.

3.19.2.2 Insurance receivables, other receivables and statutory deposits

Insurance receivables, other receivables and statutory deposits are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short- term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

3.19.3 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

s on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.
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3.19 Financial assets (continued)
3.19.3 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (continued)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of
securities reserve. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments, but reclassified to retained earnings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at
FVTOCI.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

3.19.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
on initial recognition (see above).

Investment linked components of insurance contracts are classified as at FVTPL. Any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement of these assets and equivalent movements in reserves attributable to
policyholders are offset within the same line in the consolidated income statement.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL when the business model is changed
such that the amortised cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt instruments that are
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 30.3.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.19  Financial assects (continued)
3.19.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

The foreign exchange component forms part of its fair value gain or loss. Therefore,

e for financial assets that are classified as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component is
recognised in profit or loss; and

e for financial assets that designated as at FVTOCI, any foreign exchange component is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For foreign currency denominated debt instruments measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of
the financial assets and are recognised in the profit or loss.

3.19.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the
estimated future cash flows of the asset have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as insurance receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and guarantee,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.19  Financial assets (continued)
3.19.6 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of insurance receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When an insurance receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the financial
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

3.19.7 Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or measured at FVTPL, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of securities reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

3.20  Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
3.20.1 Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.21  Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afier
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

3.22  Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value net of transactions costs except financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which are initially measured at fair value, All
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. The Group does not have any financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

3.22.1 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of the reporting period. The Group’s financial liabilities measured at
amortised costs include bank borrowings, reinsurance deposits retained, insurance payables, trade and
other payables excluding the advances to suppliers.

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method with interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
the cost of an asset, is recognised in profit or loss except for short term payables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

3.22.2 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the profit or loss.

3.22.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.23  Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. All
the derivatives financial instruments are carried at their fair values as financial assets where the fair
values are positive and as financial liabilities where the fair values are negative. A derivative financial
instrument is presented as non-current assets or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months,
Other derivative financial instruments are presented as current assets or current liabilities. Fair values of
the derivatives are carried out by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and
recognised pricing models as appropriate. Interest rate swap and total return swap contracts represent
Level 2 and Level 1 financial instruments under the fair value hierarchy.

3.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Shareholders is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Shareholders.

4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The significant judgements and estimates made by management that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are described below:

4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that

management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)
4.1.1  Classification of investments

Management determines at the time of acquisition of securities whether these should be classified as at
FVTOCI, FVTPL or amortised cost. In determining whether investments in securities are classified as at
FVTOCL FVTPL or amortised cost, management has considered the detailed criteria for determination
of such classification as set out in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Management is satisfied that the
Group’s investments in securities are appropriately classified.

4.1.2  Classification of properties

In the process of classifying properties, management has made various judgments. Judgments are
needed to determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment,
property under development and/or property held for sale. Management develops criteria so that it can
exercise that judgment consistently in accordance with the definitions of investment property, property
and equipment, property under development and property held for sale. In making its judgment,
management has considered the detailed criteria and related guidance set out in IAS 2 — Inventories, [AS
16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, and IAS 40 — Investment Property, with regards to the intended use
of the property.

4.1.3  Consolidation of Qatar Operations

The Company established operations in Qatar on 6 January 2008 through an agency agreement entered
into with the local sponsor valid for an indefinite period, The financial performance and the financial
position of Qatar operations are consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of
the control as the operations are managed and supervised by the Company from the inception to date. At
the end of the each reporting period, management assesses the Company’s ability to manage and
supervise the financial and operating policies of the Qatar Operations for the benefit of the Company
and determines if the financial performance and financial position be consolidated with the Company.
Based on such assessment, the Company continues to consolidate Qatar operations in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and for the year then ended. If the
assumptions and judgments made by management in making this decision change in future, significant
adjustments may be required for these consolidated financial statements in respect of the financial
performance and financial position of Qatar operations consolidated thereof.

4.1.4.  Financial investmenis at amortized costs

Management has reviewed the Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost in the light of its
capital maintenance and liquidity requirements and has confirmed the Group’s positive intent and ability
to hold these assets until their maturity so as to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The carrying amount of
financial assets measured at amortized cost is AED 1,179,374 thousand at 31 December 2017 (2016:
AED 972,865 thousand), Details of these assets are set out in note 9,
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)
4.1.5  Deferred tax asset

For the purpose of measuring the deferred tax asset that substantially pertaining to carried forward
unused tax losses of a subsidiary, management has reviewed the future forecast and profitability of the
subsidiary over the period in which tax losses should be utilized and concluded that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those unused tax losses can be utilized, Details of
deferred tax asset calculation are set out in note 8.

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

4.2.1  The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance conlracts

The estimation of ultimate liability arising from the claims made under insurance contracts is the
Group’s most critical accounting estimate. There are sources of uncertainty that need to be considered
in the estimate of the liability that the Group will eventually pay for such claims. Estimates have to be
made at the end of the reporting period for both the expected ultimate cost of claims reported and for
the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). Liabilities for unpaid reported
claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and
management estimates based on past claims settlement trends for the claims incurred but not reported.
At the end of each reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and
changes are made to the provision,

4.2.2  Impairment of insurance receivables

An estimate of the collectible amounts of insurance receivable is made when collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. This determination of whether the insurance receivables are impaired
entails management’s evaluation of the specific credit and liquidity position of the contract holders and
their historical recovery rates including detailed reviews carried out during 2017 and feedback received
from the legal department. Based on this estimate, an impairment loss of AED 36,126 thousand (2016:
37,282 thousand) has been recognised in the current year.

4.2.3  Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of
insurance contract liabilities. The Group makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such liabilities in evaluating the adequacy of the liability, Any deficiency is immediately
charged to the profit or loss.

4.2.4  Actuarial valuation of life assurance fund

Mortality and withdrawal rate assumptions used in actuarial valuation of life fund are based on
experience and the most current industry standard mortality table.
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4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
4.2.5  Additional reserve

This reserve represents management’s best estimates of potential liabilities at the end of the reporting
period in respect of premium deficiency, IBNR and shortfall in the estimated amounts of the unpaid
reported claims. This reserve is estimated by the Group’s actuary.

4.2.6  Valuation of unquoted equity instruments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on recent market transactions on an arm’s
length basis, fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, expected cash flows
discounted at current rates for similar instruments or other valuation models. The Group engages
independent third party qualified valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. In the absence of an active market for these investments or any recent transactions that could
provide evidence of the current fair value, management estimates the fair value of these instruments
using expected cash flows discounted at current rates for similar instruments or other valuation models.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed in Note 30.3.2. 4

4.2.7  Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash generating units to which goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value-in-use required the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from each
cash generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

4,.2.7.1 Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to cash generating units for
impairment testing as follows:

2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000

Dubai Starr Sigorta A.S. 12,514 13,465
ITACO Bahrain Co W.L.L 1,900 1,900
14,414 15,365

Management has carried out an impairment test for goodwill at the year end and has concluded that no
impairment has taken place. For this purpose, the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections, based on financial
budgets approved by senior management, covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate, which management believes approximates the long term
growth rate for the industry in which the cash generating unit operates,
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4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

4.2.7  Impairment of goodwill (continued)

4.2.7.2 Key assumption used for the calculation of value-in-use

The calculation of value-in-use is sensitive to the following assumptions:

a. Growth rate

Growth rates are based on the management’s assessment of the market share having regard to the
forecasted growth and demand for the products offered. Growth rates of 12% - 21% per annum have
been applied in the calculation,

b. Profit margins

Profit margins are based on the management’s assessment of achieving a stabilized level of
performance based on the approved business plan of the cash generating unit for the next five years.

c. Discount rates

Management has used the discount rate of 13.55% - 18.2% per annum throughout the assessment
period, reflecting the estimated weighted average cost of capital of the Group and specific market risk
profile.

4.2.8  Amortization of deferred acquisition costs ("DAC") and deferred commission income

Deferred acquisition costs are amortized using methods that provide the most appropriate bases of
recognizing acquisition costs as expenses in line with the recognition of revenue from related insurance
contracts. The various assumptions, inputs and estimates are used in these calculations by management.

4.2.9  Impairment of intangible assets

The period of amortisation of the intangible assets is determined based on the pattern in which the
asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group and technological
obsolescence. Management has concluded that no impairment of intangible assets is required based on
impairment test performed by the Group as of the reporting date.

4.2.10 Property and equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the repair and maintenance program and
technological obsolescence arising from changes and the residual value. Management has not
considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.
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5 Property and equipment
Furniture Motor Capital work
and equipment vehicles in progress Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED’000 AED’000
Cost
Balance at 31 December 2015 102,877 1,391 - 104,268
Additions during the year 2,545 - - 2,545
Written off/disposals during the year (7,042) (385) - (7,427)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange differences (305) (22) - (327)
Balance at 31 December 2016 98,075 084 - 99,059
Additions during the year 3,024 72 237 3,333
Transfers 237 - 237) -
Written off/disposals during the year (937) (309) - (1,246)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange differences 291 8 - 299
Balance at 31 December 2017 100,690 755 - 101,445
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31 December 2015 70,902 646 - 71,548
Charge for the year 10,945 148 - 11,093
Written off/disposals during the year (4,191) (385) - (4.576)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange differences (359) 98 - (261)
Balance at 31 December 2016 77,297 507 - 77,804
Charge for the year 9,222 158 - 9,380
Written off/disposals during the year (824) (200) - (1,024)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange differences 148 4 - 152
Balance at 31 December 2017 85,843 469 - 86,312
Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2017 14,847 286 - 15,133

Balance at 31 December 2016 20,778 477 - 21,255
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6. Intangible assets

Cost

31 December 2015

Additions during the year

Transfers

Effect of foreign exchange differences

31 December 2016
Additions during the year
Transfers

31 December 2017

Amortisation

31 December 2015

Charge for the year

Effect of foreign exchange differences

31 December 2016
Charge for the year

31 December 2017

Carrying amount
31 December 2017

31 December 2016

51
Capital
Computer work in

software progress Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
36,190 43,638 79,828
66 13,331 13,397
19,134 (19,134) -
(508) - (508)
54,882 37,835 92,717
4,124 12,003 16,127
31,454 (31,454) -
90,460 18,384 108,844
6,805 - 6,805
7,838 - 7,838
(123) . (123)
14,520 - 14,520
9,649 - 9,649
24,169 - 24,169
66,291 18,384 84,675
40,362 37,835 78,197

Capital work-in-progress includes advances paid to consultants and providers of information
technology solutions for the improvements to computer software of Group’s [T infrastructure.

7. Invesiment propertics

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net decrease in fair value during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Investment properties include plots of land and buildings.

2017
AED’000

511,364
(573)

510,791

2016
AED’000

513,725
(2,361)

511,364
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T Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investments properties as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 has been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried on the respective dates by independent valuers who are not related
to the Group and have appropriate qualifications and recent market experience in the valuation of
properties in the United Arab Emirates.

The fair value was determined based on the acceptable approaches that reflects recent transactions
prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s investment properties are classified as level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy and there are no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year 2017 and 2016.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and their fair values are as follows:

2017 2016

AED 000 AED 000

Plots of land located in Dubai, UAE 373,540 373,200
Units of a building located in DIFC, Dubai, UAE 09,976 70,795
Units of a building located in Motor City, Dubai, UAE 67,275 67,369
510,791 511,364

8. Income tax

Foreign operations of the Group are liable for the corporate taxes of the respective jurisdictions at
prevailing tax rates. The effective tax rates during the year were 15% to 22% (2016: 12% to 20%). The
corporate taxes are payable on the total income of the foreign operations after making the adjustments
for certain disallowable expenses, exempt income and investment and other allowances. During the
year, the provision for corporate tax liabilities is made only for the Group’s Oman operations as other

foreign operating entities have incurred taxable losses.

8.1 Income tax expenses recognized in profit or loss
2017 2016
AED 000 AED 000
Current tax
In respect of the current year 691 1,199
Deferred tax
In respect of current year 6,622 5,262
Total income tax charge recognised in the
current year 7,313 6,461
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8. Income tax (continued)

8.1 Income tax expenses recognized in profit or loss (continued)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2017
ALD *000
Profit before tax for the year 111,798
Adjustments for:
Profit not subject to income tax (107,884)
Allowable expenses (36)
Statutory allowance -
Unallowable expenses 750
Taxable profit for the year 4,608
Income tax payable for the current year 691
8.2 Deferred tax assets

53

2016
AED *000

85,356
(75,083)
(335)

(286)
335

9,987

1,199

Following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the consolidated statement of

financial position;

2017
AED 000
Deferred tax assets 1,924
Deferred tax liabilities (104)
Deferred tax assets - net 1,820
Deferred tax assets/liabilities given above relate to the following:
2017
AED 000
Accumulated losses 876
Insurance contract liabilities 198
Accruals 681
Provision for employees’ benefits 169

Difference in valuation of lixed assets (104)

1,820

2016
AED "000

9,229
(103)

9,126

2016
AED 000

8,424
10
289
506
(103)

9,126
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9. Financial investments
9.1 Composition of financial investments
The Group’s financial investments at the end of reporting period are detailed below.
2017 2016
AED '000 AED 7000
At fair value through profit or loss (note 9.2) 322,497 294,908
At fair value through other comprehensive income (note 9.3) 457,701 580,173
Measured at amortised cost (note 9.4) 1,179,374 972,865
1,959,572 1,847,946
9.2 Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
Domestic International Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
AED ’000 AED 000 AED’000  AED 000 AED 000  AED '000
Investment in bonds - - 23,194 37,549 23,194 37,549
Unit linked investments 5,121 3,079 294,182 254,280 299,303 257,359
5,121 3,079 317,376 291,829 322,497 294,908
9.3 Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Domestic International Tatal
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
AED *000 AED 000 AED’000  AED "000 AED 000 AED 000
Shares
- Quoted 129,292 140,300 146,954 173,775 276,246 314,075
- Unquoted 48,373 186,131 133,082 79,967 181,455 266,098
177,665 326,431 280,036 253,742 457,701 580,173
9.4 Financial investments measured at amortised cost
Domestic International Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
AED 000 AED 000 AED 000 AED '000 AED 000 AED '000
Investments in bonds
- Quoted 893,944 507,120 268,830 449213 1,162,774 956,333
- Unquoted 16,600 16,532 - - 16,600 16,532
910,544 523,652 268,830 449,213 1,179,374 072,865
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9. Financial investments (continued)
9.4 Financial investments measured at amortised cost (continued)

These bonds carry interests at the rates of 1.81% to 7.88% per annum. The Group holds these
investments with the objective of receiving the contractual cash flows over the instruments life. The
bonds are redeemable at par from 2018 to 2035 based on their maturity dates. The fair value of these
bonds at 31 December 2017 is AED 1,178,979 thousand (2016: AED 973,682 thousand).

9.5 Movements in financial investments

The movements in financial investments are as follows:

Fair value Fair value

through through  Amortised

profit or loss OClI cost Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED’000

At 31 December 2015 308,955 466,611 962,622 1,738,188
Purchases 135,638 217,288 161,040 513,966
Disposals (159,569) (121,378) (148,567) (429,514)
Amortisation - - (2,230) (2,230)
Changes in fair value 9,884 17,652 - 27,536
At 31 December 2016 294,908 580,173 972,865 1,847,946
Purchases 129,618 126,270 855,968 1,111,856
Disposals (150,854) (297,658) (645,513) (1,094,025)
Amortisation - - (3,946) (3,946)
Changes in fair value 48,825 48,916 - 97,741
At 31 December 2017 322,497 457,701 1,179,374 1,959,572

9.5.1 Reclassification of financial investments measured at FVTPL

On 28 March 2013, management revisited the Group’s business model for managing the financial
investments and changed its business model for managing investments in debt instruments. Accordingly,
the Group reclassified AED 352,391 thousand from FVTPL to amortised cost from 1 April 2013. The
business model has been changed from realizing the fair value by disposing of the investment to hold the
asset until its maturity so as to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These bonds carry effective interests at the rates of 2% to 9% per annum at the date of reclassification,
The interest income recognized on these investments for the year ended 31 December 2017 is AED 2,945
thousand (2016: AED 4,626 thousand).

The fair value loss recognised in profit or loss during the year would have been increased by AED 1,510
thousand (2016: AED 127 thousand) if these financial assets had not been reclassified.



OMAN INSURANCE COMPANY P.S.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES 56

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

10. Statutory deposits

2017 2016
AED *000 AED *000
Bank deposit maintained in accordance with Article 42

of U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 10,000 10,000
Amount under lien with Capital Market Authority —

Sultanate of Oman 97,532 95,576
Amounts under lien with the Qatar Central Bank 34,955 -
Amounts under lien with Turkish Treasury, Turkey 14,999 16,139

157,486 121,715
11. Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets
2017 2016
AED 7000 AED '000
Insurance contract liabilities
QOutstanding claims 1,896,312 1,867,591
Additional reserve 340,062 317,739
Life assurance fund (note 11.1) 208,045 235,138
Unearned premium (note 25.1) 1,403,432 1,271,277
Unit linked liabilities (note 11.2) 296,293 255,551
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve 9,103 0,503
4,153,247 3,956,799
Recoverable from re-insurers
Qutstanding claims 1,509,940 1,483,302
Additional reserve 225,044 205,477
Unearned premiums (note 25.1) 783,265 718,708
2,518,249 2,407,487
Insurance contract liabilities — net
Outstanding claims 386,372 384,289
Additional reserve 115,018 112,262
Life assurance fund (note 11.1) 208,045 235,138
Unearned premiums (note 25.1) 620,167 552,569
Unit linked liabilities (note 11.2) 296,293 255,551
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve 9,103 9,503
1,634,998 1,549,312

The technical reserves have been certified by the Appointed Actuary of the Company according to the
Financial Regulations issued by Insurance Authority. A summary of the actuary’s report on the technical
provisions is disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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11. Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

11.1  Life assurance fund AED 000
31 December 2015 232,466
Increase 2,672
31 December 2016 235,138
Decrease (27,093)
31 December 2017 208,045
11.2  Unit linked liabilities AED *000
31 December 2015 291,067
Decrease (35,516)
31 December 2016 255,551
Increase 40,742
31 December 2017 296,293

The following table presents the sensitivity of the value of insurance contract liabilities disclosed in this
note to movements in the assumptions used in the estimation of insurance contract liabilities. For
liabilities under long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, changes in assumptions
will not cause a change to the amount of the liability, unless the change is severe enough to trigger a
liability adequacy test adjustment. No losses arose in either 2017 or 2016, based on the results of the
liability adequacy test. The table below indicates the level of the respective variable that will trigger an
adjustment and then indicates the liability adjustment required as a result of a further deterioration in the
variable.

Impact on net liability

2017 2016
Scenario Change in assumptions AED’000 AED’000
Mortality/morbidity +10% 1,120 1,480
Discount rate +75bps (7,147) (10,036)
Mortality/morbidity -10% (1,127) (1,487)

Discount rate -75bps 8,075 11,542
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12. Insurance receivables

Due from policyholders and brokers
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from policyholders and brokers

Due from insurance/reinsurance companies
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from insurance/reinsurance companies

Total insurance receivables

58

2017 2016
AED*000 AED’000
922,510 941,003
(97,690) (79,412)
824,820 861,591
678,369 707,944
(40,939) (38,276)
637,430 669,668
1,462,250 1,531,259

The average credit period of insurance receivables is 30 to 120 days. No interest is charged on overdue

balances and no collateral is taken on insurance receivables.

The Group has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Adequate credit assessment
is made before accepting an insurance contract from any counterparty. The Group does not have any
single counterparty whose outstanding balance at the end of the period exceeds 5% of the total receivable

balance.

Included in the Group’s total insurance receivables are balances amounting to AED 1.15 billien (2016:
AED 1.20 billion) which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which no allowance has been
provided for, as there was no significant change in credit quality of these insurance receivables and the

amounts are considered recoverable.

12.1  Insurance receivables by location

Inside UAE

Due from policyholders and brokers
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from policyholders and brokers

Due from insurance/reinsurance companies
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from insurance/reinsurance companies

Total insurance receivables inside UAE

2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000
759,654 736,388
(75,272) (62,013)
684,382 674,375
501,538 555,687
(40,867) (38,276)
460,671 517,411

1,145,053 1,191,786
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12. Insurance receivables (continued)

12.1  Insurance receivables by location (continued)

Qutside UAE

Due from policyholders and brokers
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from policyholders and brokers

Due from insurance/reinsurance companies
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Net due from insurance/reinsurance companies

Total insurance receivables outside UAE

59

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
162,856 204,615
(22,418) (17,399)
140,438 187,216
176,831 152,257
(72) -
176,759 152,257
317,197 339,473
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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12. Insurance receivables (continued)
12.3 Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000
Balance at beginning of the year 117,688 106,903
Allowance made during the year 36,126 37,282
Amounts written off as uncollectible during the year (14,322) (26,497)
Foreign currency exchange differences (863) -
Balance at end of the year 138,629 117,688

The Group has provided for certain receivables based on estimated recoverable amounts, determined after
review of credit quality of specific customers and past default experience. In determining the recoverability
of an insurance receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the customer from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Accordingly, management believes that no further

provision is required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts that has been provided for.

13. Prepayments and other receivables
2017 2016
AED’'000 AED’000
Accrued income 21,179 21,024
Prepayments 66,229 51,431
Staff debtors and advances 7,756 7,152
Other receivables 60,343 38,607
155,507 118,214
14. Bank balances and cash
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Deposits with banks with maturity over 3 months 138,487 169,988
Deposits with banks maturing within 3 months 122,517 43,157
Current accounts and cash 115,609 252,233
Total bank balances and cash 376,613 465,378
Less: Deposit with banks with maturity over 3 months (138.487) (169,988)
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
consolidated statement of cash flows 238,126 295,390
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14. Bank balances and cash (continued)
The interest rates on fixed deposits and call accounts with banks ranges 0.1% to 13.95% (2016: 0.1% to
7.4%) per annum. Bank balances amounting to AED 141,322 thousand (2016: AED 249,138 thousand) are
held in local banks in the United Arab Emirates.

Certain deposits with carrying value of AED 26,009 thousand at 31 December 2017 (2016: AED 21,435
thousand) are subject to lien in respect of guarantees and overdraft facilities.

15, Share capital

2017 2016
AED000 AED’000
Authorised, issued and fully paid 461,872,125 shares
of AED 1 each (31 December 2016: 461,872,125
shares of AED 1 each) 461,872 461,872
16. Reserves
Statutory Strategic General Contingency
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
AED 000 AED 000 AED 000 AED '000 AED *000
Balance at 1 January 2016 230,936 303,750 913,327 8,943 1,456,956
Transfer from retained earnings - 7 19,724 657 20,381
Balance at 31 December 2016 230,936 303,750 033,051 9,600 1,477,337
Transfer from retained earnings - - - 1,957 1,957
Balance at 31 December 2017 230,936 303,750 033,051 11,557 1,479,294

16.1  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of
profit for the year is required to be transferred to statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to
discontinue such annual transfers when the statutory reserve is equal to 50% of the paid up share capital.
The reserve is not available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the law. The
shareholders had resolved to discontinue the appropriation as the statutory reserve reached 50% of share
capital. Accordingly, no transfer was made during the year.
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16. Reserves (continued)
16.2  Strategic reserve

The strategic reserve may be utilised for any purpose to be determined by a resolution of the Shareholders
of the Company at general meeting, on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, No transfers have
been made to the strategic reserve during the year,

16.3  General reserve

In accordance with the amended Articles of Association, 10% of profit for the year is required to be
transferred to voluntary reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the
general reserve is equal to 50% of the paid up share capital. The Company has discontinued the
appropriation as the voluntary reserve reached 50% of paid up share capital. Accordingly, no transfer was
made during the year.

16.4  Contingency reserve — Oman Branch

In accordance with Article 10 (bis) (2) (¢) of Regulations for Implementing Insurance Companies Law
(Ministerial Order 5/80), as amended, of Sultanate of Oman, 10% of the net outstanding claims at the end of
the reporting period is transferred from retained earnings to a contingency reserve until the provision is
equal to RO 5 million. In case of insufficient retained earnings or accumulated loss position, the deficit in
transfer will be adjusted against retained earnings of future years. The reserves shall not be used without the
prior approval of the Capital Market Authority of Sultanate of Oman.

17. End of service benefiis
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 32,769 30,192
Charge for the year 9,338 7,753
Paid during the year (5,302) (5,176)
Balance at the end of the year 36,805 32,769
18. Bank borrowings
2017 2016
AED*000 AED’000
Short term bank loans 240,927 367,732

Short term bank loans are secured by assignment of certain bonds in favor of financial institutions. These
loans carry an average interest rate of 1.98% (2016: 1.53%) per annum. Short term loans are utilised for
Group’s operational activities.
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18. Bank borrowings (continued)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Movement during the year

Balance at the end of the year

19, Insurance and other payables

19.1 Insurance payables

2017
AED 000
Insurance payables — Inside UAE 475,391
Insurance payables — Outside UAE 176,239
651,630
2017
AED *000
Inside UAE

Due to policyholders and brokers ‘ 84,148
Due to insurance/reinsurance companies 303,338
Premiums collected in advance 245
Other insurance payables 87,660
475,391
2017
AED *000

Outside UAE
Due to policyholders and brokers 85,229
Due to insurance/reinsurance companies 56,769
Premiums collected in advance 23,529
Other insurance payables 10,712

176,239
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2017

AED’000

367,732
(126,805)

240,927

2016

AED ’000

530,533
149,690

680,223

2016

AED *000

118,520
350,412
274
61,327

530,533

2016

AED 7000

78,222
44,562
18,238

8,068

149,690
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19. Insurance and other payables (continued)

19.1 Insurance payables (continued)

67

The average credit period is 60 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

19.2  Other payables

Accruals for staff costs
Other payables and accruals

20. Net investment income

Dividend income from financial investments at FVTOCI

Interest income from financial investments at amortised
cost/FVTPL

Interest income from deposits

Change in fair value of investment properties

Fair value gain on financial investments at FVTPL

Realised losses on sale of financial investments at
FVTPL

Realised gains/(losses) on sale of financial investments at
amortised cost

Unrealised gains on fair valuation of derivative
transactions

Rental income from investment properties

Other investment expenses

21. Other expenses

General and administration expenses not allocated

2017
AED'000

21,759
60,999

82,758

2017
AED *000

20,090

37,487
20,068
(573)
3,560

@271)
9,072

10,689
(23,745)

76,377

2017
AED 000

42,862

2016
AED’000

16,282
82,083

08,365

2016
AED *000

24,086

45,652

23,192

(2,361)
2,298

(2.369)
(7.465)

480
8,821
(19,044)

73,290

2016
AED *000

53,573
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22. Profit for the year

Profit for the year is stated after charging:

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Staff costs 203,728 201,784
Depreciation and amortisation 19,029 18,931
Rental costs — operating leases 13,591 23,854
23, Earnings per share

2017 2016

Profit for the year attributable to the Owners of the
Company (AED 000) 106,321 80,822
Weighted average number of shares 461,872,125 461,872,125
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED) 0.23 0.17

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the Owners of the
Company by the number of weighted average shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
Diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic earnings per share as the Company did not issue any new
instrument that would impact earnings per share when executed.

24, Related party transactions
Related parties include the Group’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and
their families over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management

personnel.

24.1 At the end of the reporting period, amounts due from/to related parties are included in the
following accounts:

2017 2016

AED *000 AED 000

Cash and bank balances 76,464 180,688
Bank borrowings 240,927 357,855
Statutory deposits 10,000 10,000
Net insurance receivable 43,985 38,213

Net insurance payable 2,877 1,519
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24. Related party transactions (continued)

24.2  During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2017 2016

AED 7000 AED ‘000

Premiums 97.366 87,457
Claims 77,349 55,879
Interest income 726 476
Interest expense 3,741 246
Rental expense 3421 4,462

The Group has entered into above transactions with related parties which were made on substantially the
same terms, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with third parties.

243  Compensation of key management personnel

2017 2016

AED 000 AED 000

Directors’ fees 2,250 2,250
Salaries and benefits 3,214 2,471
End of service benefits 283 174

5,747 4,895

25. Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into three business segments, general insurance, life
insurance including medical and investments. The general insurance segment comprises property, motor,
general accident, aviation and marine risks. The life insurance segment includes individual life
(participating and non-participating), medical, group life and personal accident as well as investment
linked products. Investment comprises investments (financial and non financial), deposits with banks and
cash management for the Group’s own accounts.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker,

Segmental information is presented below:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

25, Segment information (continued)

25,6  Geographical information of segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 As at 31 December 2016
GCC Turkey Total GCC Turkey Total
AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Segment assets 6,987,672 417,018 7,404,690 6,852,450 403,486 7,255,936
Segment
liabilities 4,981,899 361,964 5,343,863 4,970,090 328,753 5,298,843
Capital
expenditure 19,460 - 19,460 15,942 - 15,942
Depreciation and
amortisation 18,122 907 19,029 18,020 911 18,931
26. Contingent liabilities
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Bank guarantees 100,473 104,963

The above bank guarantees were issued in the normal course of business.

The Group, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course
of its business. The Group, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome of these
court cases will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial performance or consolidated
financial position.

27. Commitments
2017 2016
AED 000 AED 000
27.1 Purchase commitments

Commitments in respect of uncalled subscription of certain

shares held as investments 13,911 12,721
Capital commitments towards acquisitions of property and

equipment and intangible assets 11,013 295
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

27. Commitments (continued)
27,2 Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements are as follows:

2017 2016

AED '000 AED 000

Within one year 8,595 2,632
Second to fifth year 5,380 1,407

28, Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable. Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims
and benefit payments exceed the estimated amount of the insurance liabilitics. This could occur because
the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate
established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its
insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected
outcome,

The Group manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are
well diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in
place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.

28.1  Frequency and severity of claims

The Group has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductibles and to
reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Group’s strategy limits the
total exposure to any one territory and the exposure to any one industry.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

28. Insurance risk (continued)
28.1  Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the
properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable
on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for
contents and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the
level of claims under these policies. Property insurance contracts are subdivided into four risk categories:
fire, business interruption, weather damage and theft. The insurance risk arising from these contracts is
not concentrated in any of the territories in which the Group operates, and there is a balance between
commercial and personal properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Group should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED
4,000 thousand in any one event estimated at 1:250 years. The Group has survey units dealing with the
mitigation of risks surrounding claims, This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk
claims. The risks are reviewed individually at least once in 3 years and adjusted to reflect the latest
information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other
factors. The Group actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable developments.

28.2  Sowrces of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all
insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of
the contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the
claims provision includes incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally
subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified
to the Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to
the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insurance contracts, the
IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In
estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to
allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing
claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability
established. The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to
the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts are also subject to
the emergence of new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

28, Insurance risk (continued)
28.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections
given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most
appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class
and the extent of the development of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims
experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as
time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is
based on previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated
market experience and historical claims inflation.

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance are analysed
below by type of risk where the insured operates for current and prior year premium earned.

Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2016

Type of risk Gross Loss Net Loss Gross Loss Net Loss
Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio

Life and medical insurance 76.7% 74.7% 84.4% 78.5%
Non-life insurance 66.1% 67.7% 87.3% 64.0%

28.3  Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is derived mostly from the Group’s quarterly
claims reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period
to derive data for the contracts held. The Group uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and
market data to measure its claims liabilities. The Group has reviewed the individual contracts and in
particular the industries in which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims.
This information is used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the
projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment
of the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances,
this has meant that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual
accident years or groups of accident years within the same class of business,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

28. Insurance risk (continued)
28,5  Concentration of insurance risk

The Group’s underwriting business is based entirely within the UAE, Turkey and other GCC countries,
except for some treaty reinsurance arrangements with companies based in Europe and Asia.

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large
insurance claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties
for reinsurance purposes.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts
do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders. The Group remains liable to its
policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations
assumed under the reinsurance agreements.

28.6  Sensitivity of underwriting profit

The contribution by the insurance operations to the profit of the Group is AED 116,890 thousand for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: AED 105,882 thousand). The Group does not foresee any adverse
change in the contribution of insurance profit due to the following reasons:

e The Group has an overall risk retention level in the region of 40% (2016: 39%) and this is mainly
due to low retention levels in Engineering, Property and Energy. However, for other lines of
business, the Group is adequately covered by excess of loss reinsurance programs to guard against
major financial impact.

s The Group has commission income of AED 327,951 thousand (2016: AED 320,466 thousand)
predominantly from the reinsurance placement which remains a comfortable source of income.

Because of low risk retention of 40% (2016: 39%) of the volume of the business and limited exposure in
high retention areas such as motor, the Group is comfortable to maintain an overall net loss ratio in the
region of 71% (2016: 71%) and does not foresee any serious financial impact in the net underwriting
profit.

29. Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on
Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of Its Operations.
. to protect its policy holders’ interests,

. to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for the Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

. to provide an adequate return to the Shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately
with the level of risk.
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29. Capital risk management (continued)

The solvency regulations identify the required solvency margin to be held in addition to insurance
liabilities. The solvency margin must be maintained at all times throughout the year. The Company has
incorporated in its policies and procedures the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance
with such regulations.

New Regulations enforced during 2017:

The table below summarizes the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and
Solvency Capital Requirement of the Company and the total capital held to meet these solvency
margins as per the Section 2 of the new Financial Regulations for the Insurance Companies which are
enforced during 2017,

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 938,236 806,114
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 384,164 358,320
Own Funds
Basic Own Funds 1,516,040 1,012,392
Ancillary Own Funds - -
Minimum Capital Requirement Surplus (over MCR) 1,416,040 912,392
Minimum Capital Requirement Surplus (over SCR) 577,804 206,278
Minimum Capital Requirement Surplus (over MGF) 1,131,876 654,072

Actual Regulation

Based on the actual regulatory requirements, the minimum regulatory capital required is AED 100
million (31 December 2016: AED 100 million) against which the paid up capital of the Company is
AED 462 million (31 December 2016: AED 462 million).

30. Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities,
reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term,
its investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and
investment contracts. The financial risks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its
investments and underwriting business are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, and market price
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

30.1  Significant accounting policies
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Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

30.2  Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Investments designated at FVTOCI
Investments designated at FVTPL
Financial investments measured at amortised cost
Statutory deposits measured at amortised cost
Insurance receivables measured at amortised cost
Other receivables (excluding prepayments)
measured at amortised cost
Bank balances and cash and bank deposits measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities — measured at amortised cost
Bank borrowings

Re-insurance deposits retained

Insurance payables

Other payables

2017
AED’000

457,701
322,497
1,179,374
157,486
1,462,250

89,278

376,613

4,045,199

240,927
70,280
651,630
82,758

1,045,595

2016
AED’000

580,173
294,908
972,865
121,715
1,531,259

66,783

465,378

4,033,081

367,732
67,322
680,223
98,365

1,213,642

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values, except for the financial investments
measured at amortised cost of which fair value is determined and disclosed in note 9.4 of these

consolidated financial statements.

30.3  Fair value measurement

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows;

»  The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices at the

close of the business on the reporting date.

»  The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from

observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.
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30, Financial instruments (continued)

30.3  Fair value measurement (continued)
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30.3.1 Fair value of the Group’s financial assels that are measured at fair value on recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined;

Financial Fair value as at
assets 31 December 31 December
2017 2016

AED000 AED000

Quoted equity 276,246 314,075

investments -

FVTOCI

Unquoted 181,455 266,098

equity

investments —

FVTOCI

Quoted debt 23,194 37,549

instruments —

FVTPL

Unit  linked 299,303 257,359

investments —

FVTPL

Quoted debt 1,162,917 058,226

instruments -—

amortized

costs

Unquoted 16,062 15,456

debt

instruments —
amortized
costs

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 1

Level 3

Valuation
techniques and
key inputs

Quoted bid prices
in an active
market,

Net assets
valuation method
due to the
unavailability of

market and
comparable
financial
information. Net
assets values

were determined
based on the
latest  available
audited/historical
financial
information.

Quoted bid prices
in an  active
market.

Net assets values
of the funds

Quoted bid prices
in an  active
market.

Net assets values
of the funds.

Significant  Relationship
unobservable of
input  unobservable

inputs to fair

value

None, NA

Net assets Higher  the

value. net assets
value of the
investees,
higher  the
fair value.

None. NA

Net assels Higher the
value net assets
value, higher

the fair

value.

None, NA

None. Higher the
net assets

value, higher

the fair value
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30, Financial instruments (continued)

30.3  Fair value measurement (continued)

30.3.2 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

At 31 December 2017

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED’000

At fair value through profit or loss

Investments in bonds 23,194 - - 23,194
Unit linked investments - 299,303 - 299,303
23,194 299,303 - 322,497
At fair value through other comprehensive
income
Shares — quoted 276,246 - - 276,246
Un-quoted equity instruments - - 181,455 181,455
276,246 - 181,455 457,701
At 31 December 2016
Financial assets Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED'000
At fair value through profit or loss
Investments in bonds 37,549 - 37,549
Unit linked investments - 257,359 - 257,359
37,549 257,359 - 294,908
At fair value through other comprehensive
income
Shares — quoted 314,075 - - 314,075
Un-quoted equity instruments - . 266,098 266,098

314,075 - 266,098 580,173

There were no transfers between each of level during the year. There are no significant financial
liabilities which should be measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above
table.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
30.3  Fair value measurement (continued)
30.3.3 Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements

30.3.3. 1 Reconciliation of unguoted equily instruments — al fair value through other comprehensive
income, movements in level 3 financial assets measured at fair value:

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 266,098 133,530
Additions during the year - 106,165
Disposals during the year (153,675) (16,643)
Changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income 69,032 43,046

Balance at the end of the year 181,455 266,098

30.4 Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

30.4.1 Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance income or
linance cost of the Group. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its financial investments in bonds
and term deposits and bank borrowings that carry both fixed and floating interest rates.

The Group generally manages to minimise the interest rate risk by closely monitoring the market interest
rates and investing in those financial assets in which such risk is expected to be minimal.

30.4.2  Interest rate sensitivity anclysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities assuming the amount of assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year,

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/decrease by AED 13,168 thousand
(2016: AED 9,103 thousand).
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
30.4 Market risk management (continued)
30.4.3 Foreign currency risk management

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all monetary assets and monetary liabilities of
the Group are denominated in the local currencies of the countries where the Group operates or US
Dollars to which local currencies are fixed.

Management believes that there is a minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations
and consequently the Group has not hedged their foreign currency exposure.

30.4.4 Market price risk management

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its
issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Group is exposed to market price risk
with respect to their quoted investments. The Group limits market risk by maintaining a diversified
portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in the market. In addition, the Group actively
monitors the key factors that affect stock and market movements, including analysis of the operational
and financial performance of investees.

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions
mentioned below and all the other variables were held constant, the Group’s other comprehensive income
would have increased/decreased by AED 27,625 thousand (2016: AED 31,408 thousand) in the case of
the financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis;

* The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk as at the end of
the reporting period.

* As at the end of the reporting period if equity prices are 10% higher/lower on the market value
uniformly for all equity while all other variables are held constant, the impact on other
comprehensive income has been shown above.

= A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.

30.5 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group.

Key areas where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

. reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;

. amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
. amounts due from insurance contract holders;

. amounts due from insurance intermediaries; and

. amounts due from banks for bank balances and fixed deposits
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
30,5 Credit risk management (continued)

The Group has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of their counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Group’s liability as
primary insurer, If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains liable for the
payment to the policyholder., The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by
reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

The Group maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it
conducts regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other
mechanisms, such as the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Group.
Management information reported to the Group includes details of provisions for impairment on
insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs. Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of
policyholders are mitigated by ongoing credit evaluation of their financial condition.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar
characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are registered banks with sound financial positions,

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

30.6 Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
its financial liabilities at maturity date. The Group manages the liquidity risk through a risk management
framework for the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements
by maintaining adequate reserves, sufficient cash and cash equivalent and bank facilities, to ensure that
funds are available to meet their commitments for liabilities as they fall due.

The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. The table
below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities based on remaining
undiscounted contractual obligations including interest receivable and payable.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

30.6 Liquidity risk management (continued)

31 December 2017
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Statement
of No
financial Less than 1to5 Over5 maturity
position 1 year years years date Total
AED000 AED'000 AED'000 AED000 AED'000  AED'000
Financial assets
At fair value through
profit or loss 322,497 2 299,303 23,194 - 322,497
At fair value through OCl 457,701 - - - 457,701 457,701
At amortised cost 1,179,374 136,454 559,171 716,906 - 1,412,531
Insurance receivables 1,462,250 1,462,250 - - - 1,462,250
Other receivables N
(excluding prepayments) 89,278 89,278 - - 89,278
Statutory deposits 157,486 145,620 18,895 - - 164,515
Bank balances and cash and
bank deposits 376,613 291,940 101,850 - - 393,790
Total financial assets 4,045,199 2,125,542 979,219 740,100 457,701 4,302,562
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 240,927 241,798 - - - 241,798
Reinsurance deposits
retained 70,280 70280 - - - 70,280
Insurance payables 651,630 651,630 - 651,630
Other payables 82,758 82,758 - - - 82,758

Total financial liabilitics 1,045,595 1,046,466 -

1,046,466
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30.6 Liquidity risk management (continued)

31 December 2016

Statement
of f'mat};:;lal Less than | l1to5 Over 5
posthon year years years Total
AED'000 AED'000  AED’000 AED’000 AED'000
Financial assets
A Taik Value (rough 294,008 733 260290 37,549 298,572
profit or loss
At fair value through OCl 580,173 - - - 580,173
At amortised cost 972,865 116,736 786,653 196,943 1,100,332
Insurance receivables 1,531,259 1,531,259 - - 1,531,259
Other receivables
(excluding prepayments) 66,783 66,783 - - 66,783
Statutory deposits 121,715 43,875 85,243 - 129,118
Bank balances and cash and
bank deposits 465,378 292,544 84,154 - 376,698
Total financial assets 4,033,081 2,051,930 1,216,340 234,492 4,082,935
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 367,732 367,732 - - 367,732
Reinsurance deposits n
catained 67,322 67,322 i ) 67,322
Insurance payables 680,223 680,223 - - 680,223
Other payables 98,365 98,365 - - 98,365
1,213,642

Total financial liabilities 1,213,642 1,213,642 - -
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31. Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation
Name of subsidiary and operation
Equator Insurance Agency Dubai- U.A.E.
L.L.C.**
Dubai Starr Sigorta A.S [stanbul —
Turkey
ITACO Bahrain Co Manama —
W.L.L*** Kingdom of
Bahrain
Synergize Services FZ Dubai - UAE.

L.L.CY

Proportion
of legal
ownership
interest
99.97%

51%

60%

100%

Proportion
of voting
power held

100%

51%

60%

100%

92

Principal activity
[nsurance agency.

Issuing short-term and
long-term insurance
contracts.

Brokerage and call center
services,

Management

Information technology
and transaction
processing.

During the year, Support Management Services Company Limited (Irbil — Iraq) having principal activity of
third party administration was liquidated on 7 October, 2017,

* Synergize Services FZ L.L.C was incorporated on 24 January 2014 in Dubai Outsource Zone, UAE and is
engaged in the business of providing management information technology and transaction processing

services.

#* The Company holds the remaining equity in Equator Insurance Agency L.L.C, beneficially through

nominee arrangements.

***¥TACO Bahrain Co W.L.L was acquired by the Company on 16 September 2015.
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31. Subsidiaries (continued)
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Summarised financial information of the Group’s subsidiary — Dubai Star Sigorta A.S., Turkey that the
company has a material non-controlling interest in is set out below.

Summarised financial information below represents amounts before inter-group eliminations.

Dubai Starr Sigorta A.S.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Net cash outflows from operating activities

Net cash inflows from investing activities

Net cash inflows from financing activities

Net cash inflows

Details of the above subsidiary’s income statement are given in note 25.4, segment information.

2017
AED'000

239,059

177,959

103,138

271,164

21,785

20,931

2017
AED’000

(746)

6,969

4,112

10,335

2016
AED’000

216,240

187,246

92,723

261,516

25,116

24,131

2016
AED’000

(5,605)

16,945

4,303

15,643
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32, Summary of the actuary’s report on the technical provisions (continued)

Personal insurance and fund accumulation operations

This category includes Individual Life, Group Life and Credit Life business. Technical provisions were
calculated for the UAE and Oman operations separately. Generally acceptable actuarial techniques were
implemented in the determination of the gross and net technical provisions figures.

Judgment is required in calculating the provisions and is exercised particularly through the choice of
assumptions where discretion is permitted. In turn, the assumptions used are based where possible on recent
experience investigations and market information where necessary. Technical provisions are most sensitive
to assumptions regarding discount rates and mortality/morbidity rates. The discount rate assumption used
where applicable is set to 3.00% which is within the range of assumptions used by market peers and is
reasonable with regard to the actual earnings of the Company based on the year-to-date asset information
and analysis after allowing for risk adjustment. The Company does not hold enough credible mortality
experience to conduct a full mortality study as the size of the portfolio does not generate sufficient claims to
make the experience statistically significant. A crude estimate of the expected net mortality cost indicated
that the expected mortality rate used is materially higher than the realized mortality claims in recent years
proving that the basis includes sufficient prudence margins,

Under the net premium method used, the premium taken into account in calculating technical provisions is
determined actuarially, based on the valuation assumptions regarding discount rates, mortality and
disability. The difference between this premium and the actual premium payable provides sufficient margin
for expenses. An expense adequacy test has also been performed indicating that available implicit expense
margins in the valuation basis is adequate to cover the total projected expenses for Individual Life, Group
Life and Unit linked business. The valuation methodology does not allow for voluntary early termination of
the life insurance contracts by the policyholder, hence no assumption is required for persistency. The
technical provision determined with no lapse allowance is considered to be prudent.

Property and liability insurance

This category includes health and other general insurance lines of business (LOBs). Technical provisions
were calculated separately for UAE and for Turkey operations. No discounting of technical provisions was
employed.

Outstanding claims provisions are estimated based on known facts at the date of estimation, Case estimates
are set by claims technicians and established case setting procedures. Ultimate claims are estimated by
using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the Chain Ladder and Bornhuetter-
Ferguson methods. The main assumption underlying these techniques is that the past claims development
experience can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims. As such, these
methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses based on the observed development of
earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident period.
IBNR claims are estimated by subtracting outstanding claims provisions from ultimate claims estimates.
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32, Summary of the actuary’s report on the technical provisions (continued)

Property and liability insurance (continued)
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Claim development is separately analysed for each LOB. The assumptions used in most non-life actuarial
projection techniques, including future rates of claims inflation or loss ratio assumptions, are implicit in the
historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is
used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example, to reflect one-off
occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic
conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as
portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures in order to arrive at a point estimate for the
ultimate cost of claims that represents the likely outcome, from a range of possible outcomes, taking

account of all the uncertainties involved.

33. Net premiums written

The tables below represents a breakdown of the premiums written by the Group for each category of

insurance as defined by the Insurance Authority

33.1  Gross premiums - Dircct Business

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Property and Liability Insurance 3,000,549 2,758,774
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation 160,452 256,952
Total 3,161,001 3,015,726
33.2  Gross premiums - Reinsurance Assumed
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
Property and Liability Insurance 550,307 505,219
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation 6,933 34,337
Total 557,240 539,556
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33 Net premiums written (continued)

33.3 Rcinsurance premiums ceded

Property and Liability Insurance
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation

Total

334 Net premiums written

Property and Liability Insurance
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation

Total

34, Net claims paid

97
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
2,150,170 2,043,638
63,080 140,687
2,213,250 2,184,325
2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
1,400,686 1,220,355
104,305 150,602
1,504,991 1,370,957

The tables below represents a breakdown of the claims settled by the Group for each category of insurance

as defined by the Insurance Authority

341 Gross claims settled - Direct Business

Property and Liability Insurance
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation

Total

34.2  Gross claims settled - Reinsurance Assumed

Property and Liability Insurance
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation

Total

2017 2016
AED’000 AED’000
2,121,071 1,941,581
137,279 175,236
2,258,350 2,116,817
2017 2016
AED*000 AED’000
221,391 159,998
29,177 10,281
250,568 170,279
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34, Net claims paid (continued)

34.3 Reinsurance share of claims settled

2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000

Property and Liability Insurance 1,406,997 1,201,071
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation 71,689 86,249
Total 1,478,686 1,287,320

34.4  Net claims settled

2017 2016

AED*000 AED’000

Property and Liability Insurance 935,465 000,508
Insurance of Persons & Fund Accumulation 24,767 99,268
Total 1,030,232 999,776

35, Dividends
At the Annual General Meeting held on 21 March 2017, the sharcholders approved a cash dividend

distribution of 10% amounting to AED 46,187 thousand (AED 10 fils per share) for 2016 (for 2015 10%
amounting to AED 46,187 thousand).

The Board of Directors proposes cash dividends of 10% amounting to AED 46,187 thousand (AED 10 fils
per share) for 2017.

The proposed dividends above are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting and have not been included as a liability in the consolidated financial statements.

36. Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
on 12 February 2018.



